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L]NITED STATES OF AMERICA.

Plaintiff,

EDGE, PHARMA LLC, A IiMitCd IiAbilitY
company, and WILLIAM MARC CHATOFF
and KURT RADKE, individuals,

Civil Action No. 5:22-CV-109
CONSENT DECREE OF
PERMANENT INJUNCTION

Defendants.

Plaintiff, the United States of America, by its undersigned attorneys, having filed a

Complaint for Permanent Injunction against Edge PharmaLLC ("Edge Pharma"), a limited

liability company, and William Marc Chatoff and Kurt Radke, individuals (collectively,

"Defendants"), and Defendants having appeared and having consented to the entry of this

Consent Decree of Permanent Injunction ("Decree") without contest, without admitting or

denying the allegations in the Complaint, and before any testimony has been taken, and the

United States of America having consented to this Decree;

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED as follows:

l. This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter and all parties to this action

under28 U.S.C. $$ 1331 and 1345,21U.S.C. $ 332, and its inherentequitable authority.

2. The Complaint for Permanent lnjunction states a cause of action against

DefendantsundertheFederal Food,Drug,andCosmeticAct,2l U.S.C. $$301 etseq. ("Act").

3. The Complaint alleges that Defendants violate the Act,2l U.S.C. $ 331(a), by

introducing or causing to be introduced, or delivering or causing to be delivered for introduction,

into interstate commerce articles of drug that are adulterated within the meaning of 21 U.S.C.
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$ 351(a)(2)(A) in that the drugs have been prepared, packed, or held under insanitary conditions

whereby they may have been contantinated with filth or whereby they rnay have been rendered

injurious to health.

4. The Complaint alleges that Def-endants violate the Act, 21 U.S.C. $ 331(a), by

introducing or causing to be introduced, or delivering or causing to be delivered for introduction,

into interstate commerce articles of dnrg that are adulterated within the mcaning of 21 U.S.C.

$ 351(a)(2)(B), in that the methods used in, or the facilities or controls used for, their

manufacfurre, processing, packing, or holding do not conform to, or are not operated or

administered in conformity with, curuent good manufacturing practice to assure that such drugs

meet the requirements of the Act as to safety and have thc identity and strength, and mcet the

quality and purity characteristics, which they purport or are represented to possess.

5. The Complaint allcges that Defendants violate the Act, 21 U.S.C. $ 331(a), by

introducing or causing to be introduced, or delivering or causing to be delivered for introduction,

into interstate commerce articles of dmg that are misbranded within the meaning of 21 U.S.C. $

352(f)(l) in that thcir labeling does not bear adequate directions for use.

6. The Complaint alleges that Defendants violate the Act. 21 U.S.C. $ 331(k), by

causing articles of drug to become adulterated within the meaning of 21 U.S.C. $$ 351(aX2)(A)

and 351(aX2)(B), and to become misbranded within the meaning of 2l U.S.C. S 352(0( 1), while

the drugs are held for sale after shiprnent of one or nlore of their components in interstate

comrnerce.

1. The Complaint alleges tliat Defendants violate the Act, 21 U.S.C. 5 :31(d), bV

introducing or causing to be introduced, oL delivering or causing to be delivered for introduction.
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into interstate conrmerce new drugs as defined by 21 U.S.C. $ 321(p) that are neither approved

pursuant to 2l U.S.C. S 355 nor exempt f}orn approval.

8. For the purposes of this Decree, the following definitions shall apply:

a) "Associated Persons" shall refer collectively to each and all of

Defendants'directors. officers, agents, employees. representatives, successors, assigns,

attorneys, and any and all persons in active conceft or participation with any of them who are

involved in the manufactLrre andlor distribution of articles of drug, as these tetms are defined

herein;

b) "Bulk drug substance" shall have the meaning given to the term in 21

C.F.R. $ 207.3 or any successor regulation;

c) "CGMP" shall rcfer to thc crurent good manufactLrring practice

requirements for dr-Lrgs within the meaning of 21 U.S.C. $ 351(a)(2)(B) and 21 C.F.R. Parts 210

and 211. In determining whether Defendants are rnanufacturing dmgs at an outsourcing facility

in cornpliance with CGMP, Defendants, their expert consultants, and FDA tnay consider any

regulations and/or guidance that FDA has issued with respect to CGMP fbr outsourcing

facilities:

d) "Compound" and'"compounding" shall include the combining, adrnixing.

rnixing, diluting, pooling, reconstituting, or otherwise altering of a drug or bulk drug substance to

create a drug;

e) "Days" shall refer to calendar days;

fl "Defendants' facility" shall refer to the facilities located at 856 Hercules

Drive, Colchester, Vermont 05446, and 948 Hercules Drive, Colchester, Vemont 05446, and

any other location(s) (including any new locations) at or from which, at arry time in the future.
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any Defendant, directly or indirectly, manufactures, holds, andlor distributes drugs. whether or

not any Defendant has an ownership interest in the business;

g) "Distribution" and "distributing" shall mean to sell, trade, ship, or deliver,

and shall include, but not be limited to, delivery or shiprnent to a healthcare setting fbr

administration and dispensing to a patient or to an agent of a patient;

h) "Dnrg" shall have the meaning given to the term in 21 U.S.C. $ 321(g)(1);

i) "Drug product" shall rnean a finished dosage form (for example, tablet,

capsule, or solution) that contains a drug substance. generally, but not necessarily, in association

with one or more other ingredients;

j) "FDA" shall mean the United States Food and Drug Administration;

k) The terms "manufactul'e," "manufacfured," and "manufacturing" shall

include manufacturing, compotmding, processing, packing, repackaging, and labeling drugs;

l) "New drug" shall have thc meaning given to the term in 21 U.S.C.

g 321(p); and

m) "sterile drug" shall have thc meaning givcn to the term in 21 U.S.C.

$ 3s3b(dxs).

9. Defendants and all Associated Persons who have received actual notice of this

Decree by personal service or otherwise are permanently restrained and enjoined, under 2l

U.S.C. S 332(a) and thc inherent equitable authority of this Courl, from directly or indirectly

manufacfuring, holding. and/or distributing any drug at andlor from Defendants' facility unless

such drug is manufactured and distributed in compliance with the Act, its implementing

regulations, and, as applicable, paragraph l0 and paragraph 1 1.
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REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE IF DEFENDANTS INTEND TO COMPOUND
DRUGS AT DEFENDANTS',FACILITY UNDER 2l U.S.C. $ 353b

10. Defendants and all Associated Persons who have received actual notice of this

Decree by personal service or otherwise ar..e permanently restrained and enjoined. under 21

U.S.C. $ 332(a) and the inherent equitable authority of this Couft, frorn directly or indirectly

manufacturing, holding, and/or distributing any drug at and/or from Defendauts' facility under

2l U.S.C. $ ,153b unless and until:

a) Defendants ensure that each drug that Defendants intend to manufacture.

hold, and/or distribute at or frorn Defendants' facility satisfies all of the provisions of 2l U.S.C.

ss 353b including. but not limited to:

(i) Drug labeling at2l U.S.C. I 353b(aX10);

(ii) Facility registration at 21 U.S.C. S 353b(bXl),

(iii) Use of bulk drug substances at 21 U.S.C. S 353b(aX2);

(iv) Drug reporting at 21 U.S.C. S 353b(b)(2); and

(v) Adverse event reporting at 21 U.S.C. $ 353b(bX5);

b) Defendants ensure that the facilities, rnethods, and controls used to

manufacture, hold, and/or distribute Defendants' drug products are established, operated, and

administered in conformity rvith this Decree, the Act, and its implernenting regulations, and are

adequate to prevent Defendants' drugs from becoming: adulterated within the meaning of 2l

U.S.C. SS 35 1 (a)(2)(A) and 351 (aX2XB); new drugs that are neither approved under 21 U.S.C.

$ 355 nor exempt fiom approval; andlor rnisbranded within the meaning of 21 U.S.C.

$ 3s2(fl(1);

c) Defendants retain, at Det-endants' expense, an independent person or

persons (the "CGMP Expert") who: (r) is without any pemonal or financial ties (other than a
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retention agreement to satisfy the requirements of this provision) to Det-endants or their fanrilies;

and (ii) by reason of background. training, education, or experience, is qualitied to conduct

inspections to determine whether Def-endants' tacility, methods. and controls are established,

operated, and adrninistered in confbrmity with CGMP, and to recotnmend and direct the

implementation olcorrective actions. Defendants shall notify FDA in writing of the identity and

qualifications of the CGMP Expert within ten (10) days after retaining any such CGMP Expeft;

d) Defendants submit a protocol that identifies the work plan for the CGMP

Expert and the methodology that shall be used by the CGMP Expert (the "Work PIan") to:

(z/ conduct inspection(s) of Defendants' facility as described in paragraph l0(e); (if ensure that

Defendants implement all recommended corective actions; afi (iii) ensure that Defendants'

procedures for manufacturing, holding and/or distributing drugs r,vill be continuously

administered in conformity with CGMP and are adequate to prevent Defendants' drug products

tlom becoming adulterated within the rneaning of 21 U.S.C. $s\ 351(aX2)(A) and 351(a)(2XB).

Defendants shall not implernent the Work Plan prior to receiving FDA's written approval. and in

no circumstances, shall FDA's silence be construed as a substitute for written approval;

e) The CGMP Expert reviews all observations listed on Fomrs FDA-483

issued to Defendants since 2014 and performs a comprehensive inspection of Defendants'

facility and the methods and controls used to manufacture, hold, and/or distribute drugs to

detcnline rvhcther Defendants' facility, rnethods, and controls are in confomrity with CGMP and

are adequate to prevent Defendants' drugs frorn becoming adulterated within the meaning of 2l

U.S.C. $$ 351(a)(2XA) and 351(aX2XB). Defendants shall ensure that the CGMP Expert

evaluates, at a minimurn, whether:
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(, Defendants ernploy an adequate quality control unit, capable of

detecting and corecting all CGMP deficiencies, that conducts appropf iate oversight and fulfills

its responsibilities including, but not limited to, establishing and irnplementing an adequate

supplier qualification prograrn; apploving or rejecting all components and in-process materials;

reviewing production records to assure that no errors have occun'ed or if enors have occuned

that they havc been fully investigated; approving each batch of drug product before it is released

for distribution and ensuring that non-conforming drug products are rejected; approving or

rejecting dmg products manufactured or held under contract by another company; and approving

or rejecting all procedures and specifications that havc an impact on the identity, strength,

quality, and purity of drug products;

(ii) Defendants have established adequate control systems to prevent

contamination during aseptic processing including, but not limited to, an air supply filtered

through high-efficiency particulate air ("HEPA") filters under positive pressure: a system for

rnonitoring environmental conditions; a system for cleaning and disinfecting thc room, surfaces,

equipment, and utensils used to produce drug products intended to be sterile inc.luding, but not

limited to, establishing and implementing appropriate dwell times for sporicidal agents in

classihed areas; and a system for maintaining equipment used to control the aseptic conditions;

(iiil Defendants ensure that all environments where drugs are processed

and/or held are adequately protected against mold contamination by, among other things,

determining and remediating the root cause(s) of mold growth at Defendants' facility, and

resolving all roof leaks, water darnage, and condensation in heating. ventilation, and air

conditioning ductwork that may affect areas used for drug processing andlor holding;
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('ir,1 Defendants have established and implemented adequate written

procedures to ensure that buildings used in the manufacture. holding, andlor distribution of drugs

are free of verrnin and are maintained in good repair and in a clean and sanitary condition;

(v) Defendants have established and implemented appropriate rvritten

proccdures, including validation of all aseptic and sterilizalion processes, designed to prevent

microbiological contamination of drug products intended to be sterile including, but not limited

to, procedures for srnoke studies to visualize airflow patterns under operational conditions, media

fill sirnulations in each aseptic processing arca, environmental and personnel monitoring, and

frequent measurement of air-pressure differentials during operations to detnonstrate proper airflow

(i.e., airflow from areas of higher-quality air to ad.jacent areas with lower-quality air);

(tti) Defendants ensure that all drug product production and control

records are reviewed and approved by their quality control unit to determine compliance with all

established, approved written procedures betbre a batch is released or distributed; that any

unexplained discrepancy or failure of a batch or any of its components to meet any of its

specifications is thoroughly investigated, whether or not the batch has already been distributed;

that investigations extend to other batches of the same drug product and other drug products that

n-ray be associated with the specific failtre or discrepancy; that written records of investigations

are ntade and include conclusions and follow-up; and that appropriate steps to conect and

prevent recurrence ofthe specific failure or discrepancy are taken;

(t,ii) Defendants ensure that laboratory records (electronic and paper-

based) include complete data derived from all tests necessary to ensure compliance with

established specifications and standards:

(ttiii) Defendants implement adequate written procedures to conduct

investigations of environmental monitoring excursions and media fill t'ailures to identify the
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probable root cause(s) for microbial contamination, to assess product impact, and to take

appropriate con'ective act ion :

(ix) Defendants establish and follow appropriate written procedures for

handling all written and oral complaints regarding a drug product, including review by their

quality control unit of any complaint involving the possible failure of a drug product to meet any

of its specifications and a determination as to the need for an investigation and whether the

complaint represents a serious and unexpected adverse drug experience that is required to be

reported to FDA.

(x) Defendants ensure that each person engaged in the manufacture,

holding, andlor distribution of drug products is tlained to enable such pcrsons to pcrform thcir

assigned functions and that cach person responsible for superuising the manufacfttre, holding,

andlor distribution of drug products has thc education, training, and experience. or ally

combination thereof-, to perforrn assigned functions in such a lnanner as to provide assurauce that

the drug products have the safety. identity, strength, quality, and purity that they purport or are

represented to possess; and. in conjunction with the requirements of this paragraph, Defendants

develop and implement an adequate ongoing training program on CGMP requirements to be

provided at appropriate interuals, and no less frequently than once every twelve ( l2) months, and

retain records of the CGMP training provided in accordance with the training progran-l

established under this paragraph;

(xi) Defendants establish and maintain written quality requirements

that must be met by contractors engaged in the analytical testing and/or manufacture, holding,

and/or distribution of drug products for Defendants; document in writing that contractors

engaged in the analytical testing and/or manufacture, holding, and/or distribution of drug
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products for Defendants meet the quality requirenrents established under this paragraph, and

retain records of such documentation; and conduct periodic evaluations of contractors engaged in

the analytical testing and/or manufacture, holding, and/or distribution of drug products for

Defbndants to ensure that the contractors continuously meet the quality requirements established

under this paragraph, and retain records ofsuch evaluations; and

(xii) Defendants ensure that their finished drug products are properly

labeled and are not otherwise unapproved new drugs;

0 The CGMP Expert cerlifies in writing to FDA and Defendants that:

(i) The CGMP Expert has inspected Defendants' facility, methods,

and controls used to manufacture, hold. and/or distribute drugs;

(ii) All deviations from CGMP brought to Det-endants' attention by

FDA, thc CGMP Expert, and any other source have been corrected; and

(iii) Defendants' facility, methods, and controls comply witli CGMP

and are adequate to prevent drugs from becoming adulterated within the meaning of 21 U.S.C.

$$ 351(aX2)(A) and 3sl(aX2)(B).

Defendants shall ensure that. as part of this certification, the CGMP Expert includes a

detailed and complete written report of the results, including any slrpporting docurnentation, of

the inspection(s) conducted under paragraph 10(e);

g) Defendants establish and maintain a systern to report to FDA all scrious

adverse drug experiences (in the manner described in 21 C.F.R. S 3 10.305) associated or

potentially associated with any and all of Defendants' drugs as soon as possible, but no later than

fifteen ( I 5 ) days after initial receipt of tlie adverse event infonnation;

t0
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h) Defendants establish and maintain a system to submit to FDA, at the

address specified in paragraph 29, Field Alert Reports (in the lnanner described in 21 C.F.R.

$ 314.81(bXl)) for all of Defendants' distributed drugs within three (3) working days after initial

receipt of information triggering the Field Alert Report;

i) Defendants report to FDA in writing the actions they have taken to:

(i) Con'ect all deviations brought to Defendants' attention by FDA,

the CGMP Expeft, or any other source; and

(ii) Ensure that Defendants' facility, methods, and controls used to

manufacture, hold, andlor distribute Defendants' drugs are established, operated, and

administered in conformity with this Decrce, the Act. and its implementing regulations, and are

adcquate to prevetrt Defendants' drugs fi'om bccoming: adulterated within the meaning of 2 I

U.S.C. SS 351(aX2XA) and 351(a)(2)(B); new drugs that are neither approved under 2l U.S.C.

$ 355 nor exempt from approval: and/or rnisbranded within the meaning of 2l U.S.C.

s 3s2(fl( l );

j) FDA representatives, without prior notice and when FDA deems

necessary, conduct inspection(s) at Defendants' facility, which shall include, if FDA deems

necessary, observing the preparation for and production of test or validation batches of drug

products intended to be sterile (rvhich shall not be distributed unless FDA subsequently

authorizes distribution in writing), to detennine whether Defendants' facility, methods, and

controls used to manufacfure, hold, and/or distribute drugs are established. operated, and

adniinistered in confotmity 
"vith 

CGMP and are adequate to prevent Defendants' drugs from

becoming adulterated within the meaning of 2l U.S.C. gg 351(a)(2)(A) and 351(aX2)(B).

t1
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Detbndants shall bear the costs of FDA's inspection under this paragraph at the rates specified in

paraglaph l9; and

k) Defendants receive written notice from FDA that they appear to be in

compliance with all the requirements set forth in paragraphs l0(a)-10(i) of this Decree. [n no

circumstance shall FDA's silence be construed as a substitute for written notification. lf,

pursuant to paragraph 10(f), the CGMP Expert has provided a certification and rvdtten report

that is limited to designated categories of Defendants' drugs, then FDA, as it deems appropriate,

may issue a notification under this paragraph to authorize resumption of manufacturing. holding,

and/or distribution that is limited to designated categories of drugs.

REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE IF DEFENDANTS INTEND TO COMPOUND
DRUGS AT DEFENDANTS',FACILITY UNDER 21 U.S.C. $ 353a

I I . If Defeudants intend to compound drugs at Defendants' facility under 2 1 U. S.C.

$ 353a, then Defendants and all Associated Persons who have received actual notice of this

Decree by personal service or otherwise are permanently restrained and enjoined, under 21

U.S.C. $ 332(a) and the inherent equitable authority of this Court, frorn directly or indirectly

manufacturing, liolding, and/or distributing any drug at and/or from Defendants' f-acility under

21 U.S.C. $ 353a unless and until:

a) Defendants notify FDA in writing of their intent to operate Defendants'

tacility under 21 U.S.C. $ 353a;

b) Defendants cornply with the requirements set forth in 21 U.S.C. ss 353a

including, but not limited to, the following:

(i) The drug product shall: (A) be cotnpounded fbr an identified

individual patient eitlier: (1) based on the receipt of a valid prescription order or a notation,

approved by the prescribing practitioner, on the prescription order that a compounded product is

t2
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necessary for the identified patient; or (2) before the receipt of a valid prescription order for an

individual patient, provided that the conipounding is performed only in lirnited quantities and

based on a history of receiving valid prescription orders for the compounding of the drug

product, which orders have been generated solely within an establislied relationship between

Defendant and either (l) the individual patient for whom the prescription order will be providcd

or (II) the physician or othcr licensed practitioncr who will write such prescription order; and (B)

not be distributed by Defendants prior to receipt of a valid prescription order for the identified

patient;

(ii) Defendants shall compound the drug product using only approved

drug products or bulk drug substances that meet the conditions in 2l U.S.C. sssS 353a(bxlXA)(i),

(ii), and (iii), and/or other ingredients that mect the conditions in 2l U.S.C. $ 353a(b)( l XB);

(iii) Defendants shall not compound a drug product that appears on any

existing or future list published by FDA in the Federal Register of drug products that have been

withdrawn or removed from the rnarket because such drug products or components of such drug

products have been found to be unsafe or not eff-ective;

(h,) Defendants shall not compound any drug product that is identified

by FDA by current existing or fufure regulation as a drug product that presents demonstrable

difficulties for compounding that reasonably demonstrate an adverse effect on the safety or

effectiveness of the drug product; and

6') Defendants sliall compound drug products in compliance with the

United States Pharmacopoeia (USP) chapters on pharmacy compounding. including but not

lirnited to USP <J97>, USP <795>, and any other current or future chapters of the USP that are

13
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applicable to compounding drugs. Nothing in this paragraph nrodifies or relieves Def'endants

fi'om any obligation to comply with any state statute or regulation;

c) Def-endants ensure that Def-endants' facility, methods. and controls used to

manufacture, hold, and/or distribute drugs are established, operated, and administered in

conformity with this Decree, the Act, and its implementing regulations, and are adequate to

pl'event Defendants' drugs from becoming adulterated within thc meaning of 2l U.S.C.

$ 351(aX2XA);

d) Defendants retain, at Defendants' expense, an independent person or

persons (the "Drug Compliance Expert") who (i.)is without any personal or financial ties (other

than a retention agreement to satisfy the requirements of this provision) to Defendants or their

families; and (ii) by reason of background, training, education, or experience, is clualified to

conduct inspections to dctcrmine whether Defendants' facility, methods, and controls are

adequate to prevent Defendants from manufacturing, holding, andlor distributing drug products

that are adulterated within thc rneaning of 2l U.S.C. $ 351(a)(2XA), and to recontrnend and

direct the irnplementation of comective actions. Defendants shall notify FDA in writing of the

identity and qualifications of the Drug Compliance Expert rvithin ten ( l0) days after retaining

any such Drug Cornpliance Expert;

e) Tlie Drug Compliance Expert performs a comprehensive inspection of

Defendants' facility, equipmcnt, processes, and procedures used to manufacture, hold, and/or

distribute drugs to detennine whether Defendants' facility, methods, and controls are adequate to

prevent Defendants' drug products from becoming adulterated within the neaning of 21 U.S.C. $

351(a)(2)(A). Defendants shall ensure that the Drug Compliance Expert evaluates, at a

minimum, whether:

t4
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(i) Defendants ensure that all buildings used in the tnanufacture,

holding, andlor distribution of drugs are fi'ee of vermin infestation and are in a good state of

repair;

(i, Defendants ensure that all environmettts where drugs are processed

andlor held are adequately protected against mold contamination by, among other things,

determining and remediating the root cause(s) of mold $owth at Defendants' facility, and

resolving all roof leaks, water darnage, and condensation in heating. ventilation, and air

conditioning ductwork that may affect areas used for drug processing and/or holding;

(iii) Defendants ensure that facility design and control systems arc

suitable to prevent the reflux of lower-quality air into areas designated to have higher-quality air

including. but not limited to, ISO 5 classified aseptic processing areas;

(ir,) Defendants adequately clcan, sanitize. and disinfect rooms,

surfaces, equipment, and utensils used to produce drug products intended to be sterile to prevent

contamination;

(v) Defendants implernent adequate written procedures designed to

prevent contamination of drug products intended to be sterile including, but not lirnited to,

procedures for smoke studies to visualize airflow patterns under operational conditions, media

fill simulations in each aseptic processing area, environmental and personnel monitoring, and

frequent measurement of air-pressure diffcrentials during operations to detnonstrate proper airt'low

(i.e., airflow from areas of higher-quality air to adjacent areas with lower-quality air);

(vi) Defendants implement adequate written procedttres to conduct

investigations of environmental monitoring excursions and media fill failures to identify the

probable root cause(s) for microbial contamination, to assess product impact, and to take

appropriate corrective action; and

15
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(vii) Defendants implement adequate control systetns to prevent

distribution of non-contbmring product including, but not limited to, drug products intended to

be sterile that fail sterility and/or endotoxin testing;

f) The Drug Compliance Experl certifies in writing to FDA and Defendants

that:

(i) The Drug Compliance Expert has inspected Det-endants' facility,

equiprnent, processes, and procedures used to manufacture, hold, andlor distribute drugs as

described in paragraph 1 l(e); and

(i, Defendants havc undertaken corrective actions to ensure that

Defendants' facility, methods, and controls are adequate to prevent drugs from becorning

adulterated within the meaning of 21 U.S.C. S 351(a)(2)(A).

Defendants shall cnsure that, as part of this certification, the Dmg Compliance Experl

includes a detailed and complcte written report of the results, including any supporting

documentation, of the inspection(s) conducted under paragraph 1 I (e);

g) Defendants establish and maintain a system to report to FDA all serious

adverse drug experiences (in the manner described in 21 C.F.R. $ 3 10.305) associated or

potentially associated with any and all of Defendants' drugs as soon as possible, but no later than

fifteen (15) days after initial receipt of the adverse event information;

h) Defendants establish and maintain a system to submit to FDA, at the

address specified in paragraph 29, Field Alert Reports (in the manner described in 21 C.F.R.

$ 314.81(b)(l)) for all of Defendants'distributed drugs within three (3) working days after initial

re ceipt of infonnation triggering the Field Alert Reporl;

i) Defendants report to FDA in writing the actions they have taken to:

16
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(i) Correct all insanitary conditions brought to Defendants' attention

by FDA, the Drug Compliance Expert. or any other source; and

(ii) Ensure that Defendants' facility, methods, and controls used to

manufbcftrre, hold, and/or distribute Defendants' drugs are established, operated, and

administered in conformity with this Decree. the Act, and its implementing regulations, and are

adequate to prevcnt Defendants' drugs frorn becoming adulterated within the meaning of 21

U.S.C. $ 351(aX2)(A);

j) FDA representatives, rvithout prior notice and when FDA deems

necessary, inspcct Defendants' facility, which shall include, if FDA deems neccssary, observing

the preparation for and production of test or validation batches of drug products intended to be

sterile (which shall not be distributed unless FDA subsequently authorizcs distribution in

writing), to determine whether Defendants' facility. methods, and controls used to manufacture,

hold, and/or distribute drugs cornply with this Decrce, the Act. and its implcmcnting regulations,

including whether Defendants' facility, methods, and controls are adequate to prevent their drugs

from becorning adulterated within the meaning of 2l U.S.C. S 35 1(a)(2)(A). Defendants shall

bear the costs of FDA's inspection under this paragraph at the rates specified in paragraph 19:

and

k) FDA notifies Defendants in writing that Defcndants appear to be in

compliance with all the requirements set forth in paragraphs 1l(a) 1l(i) of this Decree. In no

circumstance shall FDA's silence be construed as a substitute for written notification.

12. The following conduct is not enjoined under paragraphs I0 or I 1:

a) Defendants' manufacflrring drugs for the sole purpose of performing

validation studies, provided, however. that the drugs shall not be commercially distributed.
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Def-endants shall rnaintain in a separate file at Def-endants' facility a written log of all lot

numbers of drugs manuf'actured under this provision and shall promptly make the written log

available to FDA upon request; and

b) Defbndants'manufacturing limited quantities of drugs solely for

distribution of those drugs to a contract testing laboratory for the sole purpose of demonstrating

compliance with the requirements of paragraphs 10 and/or I 1.

ADDITIONAL R.BQUIREMENTS

13. Within sixty (60) days after entry of this Decree, Defendants shall destroy, under

FDA's supervision, all finished and/or in-process drugs and components that are in Defendants'

possession, custody, or control. Thc parties may mutually agree in writing to rnodify this sixty-

day time fi'ame, which modification may be granted without seeking leave of Court. Defendants

shall bear the costs of recall and destruction, including the costs of FDA's superuision at the

rates specified in paragraph 19. Defendants shall be responsible for ensuring that the desttuction

is carried out in a manncr tliat cornplies with all applicable federal and state environmental laws,

and any other applicable federal or state law.

14. After Defendants have received written notification frorn FDA under paragtaph

10(k), Defendant shall retain an independent person (the "Auditor") who meets the criteria

described in paragraph l0(c) and who is qualified to assess Defendants' cotnpliance with

paragraph 10 to conduct audit inspections of Dcfendants' facility. If Defendants elect to operate

Defendants' facility under 2l U.S.C. $ 353a. for all audit inspections conducted after such

election, Defendants shall retain as the Auditor an independent person r,vho meets the criteria

described in paragraph 11(d) and who is qualified to assess Defendants' compliance with

paragraph I l. Defendants shall notify FDA in writing as to the identity and qualifications of the
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Auditor as soon as they retain such Auditor. After Defendants receive written notification from

FDA under paragraph 10(k) or paragraph I I (k), audit inspections under this parag aph shall

commence no less fiequently than once every four (4) months for a period of one ( I ) year, and

once every six (6) rnonths thereafter.

a) At the conclusion of each audit inspection described in tliis paragraph.

Defendants shall ensnre that thc Auditor prepares a written audit report ("Audit Report")

analyzing whether Defendants comply with the requirements of this Decree, the Act, and its

implementing regulations. The Audit Report shall identify all deviations frorn this Decree, the

Act, and its implementing regulations ("audit report obscrvations"). Beginning with the second

Audit Report, Defendants shall ensure that the Auditor assesses the adequacy of any corrcctive

actions taken by Defendants to correct all previous audit report obseruations, if any. and any

Form FDA-483 observations, and include this information in the Audit Report. Dcfendants shall

ensure that thc Audit Report is delivered contemporaneously to Dcfendants and FDA in

accordance with the terms of paragraph 29 no later than fiftcen ( l5) days after the date each audit

inspection is completed. In addition, Defendants shall maintain all Audit Reports in a separatc

file at Defcndants' facility to which the report pertains and shall promptly make the Audit

Reports available to FDA upon request.

b) If an Audit Reporl contains any audit report observations, Defendants

shall, within thirty (30) days aller receipt of the Audit Repofi, comect those deviations. unless

FDA notifies Defendants in writing that a shorter time period is necessary. If, after receiving the

Audit Report, Defendants believe that correction of the deviations will take longer than thirty

(30) days, Defendants shall, within ten ( 10) days after receipt of the audit reporl, propose a

schedule for completing conections. FDA shall, as it deems appropriate, review and approve the
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proposed schedule in writing prior to implementation. In no circurnstance shall FDA's silence be

construed as a substitute for rvritten approval. Defendants shall complete all con'ections

according to the approved correction schedule. Within thifiy (30) days after Defendants' receipt

of an Audit Repoft, unless FDA notifies Defendants that a shoder time period is necessary, or

within the time period provided in a correction schedule approved by FDA. Defendants shall

ensure that the Auditor reviews the actions taken by Defendants to corect the audit reporl

observations. Within scven (7) days aftcr beginning that review, Defendants shall ensurc tliat the

Auditor repofts in writing with supporting documentation to FDA whether each of the audit

repoft obseruations has been firlly conected and, if not. which audit report observations retnain

uncorrected.

15. Defendants and each and all of their directors, officcrs, agents, employees.

representatives, successors. assigns, attofileys, and any and all persons in active conccrt or

participation with any of them. who have received actual noticc of this Decre e by personal

seruice or otherwise, are pelmanently restrained and enjoined under 21 I-J"S.C. $ 332(a) from

directly or indirectly doing or causing to be done any act that:

a) Violates 21 U.S.C. $ 331(a) by introducing or causing to be introduced, or

delivering or causing to be delivered for introduction. into interstate commerce, any drug that is

adulterated within the meaning of 2l U.S.C. SS 351(a)(2)(A) or 351(a)(2)(B) or rnisbranded

witliin the meaning of 21 U.S.C. S 352(f)(l);

b) Violates 21 U.S.C. $ 331(k) by causing any drug to become adulterated

within the rneaning of 21 U.S.C S$ 351(a)(2XA) or 351(aX2XB) or misbranded rvithin the

meaning of 21 U.S.C. S 352(f)(l) while such drug is held for sale after shipment of one or more

ol its components in interstate commerce:
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c) Violates 2l U.S.C. ss 33 I (d) by introducing or causing to be introduced. or

delivering or causing to be delivered for introduction, into interstate commerce, any new drug

that is neither approved under 2l U.S.C. $ 355, nor exenlpt tiom approval; and/or

d) Results in the failure to implement and continuously maintain the

requirenrents of this Decree.

16. If, at any time after entry of this Decree, FDA detennines, based on the results of

an inspection, analyses of samples, a repoft or data prepared or subrnitted by Defendants, the

CGMP Expert, the Drug Cornpliance Expefi, and/or the Auditor, or any other infonnation, that

Defendants have failed to comply with tlie provisions of this Decree, violated the Act andlor its

implementing rcgulations, andlor that additional conective actions are necessary to achieve

compliance with this Decree, the Act and/or its implementing regulations, FDA may, as and

when it deems necessary, notify Defendants in writing of the noncompliance and order

Def-endants to take appropriatc con'ective action, including, but not limited to, ordering

Defendants to irnrnediately take one or more of the following actions:

a) Cease all rnanufacturing, holding, and/or distribution of any and all

drug(s);

b) Recall specified dmgs manufachrred, held, and/or distributed by

Defendants. Defendants shall initiate the recall(s) within twenty-four (24) hours after receiving

notice flom FDA that a recall is necessary. Defendants shall destroy, under FDA's superwision.

all finished and/or in-process drugs and cotnponents that are in Defendants' possession, custody,

or control, for which a recall was initiated. Defendants shall bear the costs of such recall(s),

including the costs of destruction and the costs of FDA's superuision at the rates specified in

paragraph 19. Defendants shall be responsible for ensuring that the destruction is canied out in a
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manner that complies witli all applicable federal and state environmental laws, and any other

applicable federal or state law;

c) Destroy, under FDA supervision, all finished and/or in-process drugs and

components that are in Defendants' possession, custody, or control. Def-endants shall bear the

costs of destruction and the costs of FDA's sr"rpervision at the rates specified in paragraph 19.

Defendants shall be responsible for ensuring that the destruction is carried out in a manner that

complies with all applicable federal and state environmental laws, and any other applicable

federal or state law Submit additional rcporls or information to FDA;

d) Submit additional repofis or information to FDA;

e) Repeat, revise. modify, or expand any report(s) or plan(s) prepared

pursuant to this Decrec;

0 Issue a safety alert with respect to a drug rnanufactured, held. and/or

distributed by Dcfendants; and/or

g) Take any other con'ective action(s) as FDA, in its discretion, deems

necessary to protect the public health or bring Defendants into compliance with this Decree, the

Act and/or its implementing regulations.

Any cessation of operations or other action described in paragraph l6 sliall continue until

Defendants receive written notification from FDA that Dcfendants appear to be in compliance

with tliis Decree, the Act, and its irnplementing regulations, and that Defendants may resume

operations. Upon Defendants' written request to resume operations, FDA will determine

whether Defendants appear to be in such compliance, and, if so, issue to Defendants a written

notification permitting, as appropriate, resumption of operations. In no circumstance shall

FDA's silence be construed as a substitute for written notification. The costs of FDA
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inspections, sampling, testing, travel time, and subsistence expenses to implement the remedies

set forth in this paragraph and paragraph 16 shall be bome by Defendants at the rates specified in

paragraph 19. This provision shall be separate andapafi fiom, and in addition to, all other

remedies available to FDA. This remedy shall be separate and apart fiom, and in addition to, any

other retnedy available to the United States under this Decree or under the law.

11 . If FDA issues a directive plrrsuant to paragraph 16, the following process and

procedures shall apply:

a) Unless a different tirne frame is specified by FDA in its directive, within

ten days after receiving such directive, Defendants shall notify FDA in writing either that: (i)

Defendants arc undertaking or have undeftaken corrective action, in which event Defendants

shall also describe the specific action taken or proposed to be taken and the proposed schedule

for completing the action; or (ii) Defendants do not agree with FDA's directive. If Defendants

notify FDA that they do not agree with FDA's directive, Defendants shall explain in writing the

basis for their disagreelnent and, in doing so. may provide specific altemative actions and time

fi'ames for achieving FDA's objectives. After receipt of Defendants' notification and

explanation, FDA will review Defendants' notification and explanation and, in writing, affirm,

modify, or withdraw its directive. as FDA deems appropriate. If FDA affinns or rnodifies its

directir,'e, it shall explain the basis for its decision in writing. The written notice of affirmation or

modification shall constitute final agency action. If FDA affirms or modifies its directive,

Defendants shall, upon receipt of FDA's affirmed or modified directive. imrnediately implement

it, and may, if Defendants so choose, bring the rnatter before this Court. While seeking Court

review, Defendants shall continue to implement and fully comply with FDA's directive, unless
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and until the Court stays, reverses, or modifies FDA's directive. Any judicial review of FDA's

directive under this paragraph shall be made pursuant to paragraph 27; and

b) The process and procedures in paragraph 17(a) shall not apply to any

directive issued pursuant to paragraph 16 if such directive states tirat, in FDA's judgment, the

matter raises a significant public health concelx. In such case, Defendants shall, upon receipt of

such directive, immediately and fully comply with the terms of that directive, and the directive

shall constitute final agency action. Should Defendants seek to challenge any such directive,

they may petition the Court for relief while they irnplement FDA's directir,,e. Any judicial

review of FDA's directive under this paragraph sliall be made pursuant to paragraph 27 .

18. Representatives of FDA shall be permitted, without prior notice and as and when

FDA deerns neccssary. to make inspections of Defendants' facility, collect samples, and, rvithout

prior notice, take any other measures neccssary including but not limited to obseruing routinc

production, to monitor and ensure continuing compliance with the terrns of this Decree. During

such inspections, FDA representatives shall bc pcrmitted access to Defendants' facility

including. but not limited to. all buildings, equiprnent, in-process or unfinished and finished

materials and products, containers, labeling, and other promotional material therein; to take

photographs and make video recordings; to take samples, without charge to FDA, of finished and

unfinished materials and products, containers and packaging material therein, labeling, and other

promotional material; and to examinc and copy all records relating to the receipt, manufacturing,

holding, andlor distribution of any and all drugs and their components. The inspections shall be

permitted upon presentation of a copy of this Decree and appropriate credentials. The inspection

authority granted by this Decree is separate from, and in addition to, the authority to conduct

inspections under the Act. 21 U.S.C. $ 374.
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19. Defendants Edge Pharma LLC and William Marc ChatotT shall pay all costs of

FDA's supervision, inspections, investigations, analyses. examinations, and reviews that FDA

deems necessary to evaluate Defendants' compliance witli this Decree, including the travel

incurred by specialized investigatory and expert personnel, at the standard rates prevailing at the

time thc costs are incumed. As of the date that this Decree is signed by the padies, these rates

are: $105.46 per hour and fraction thereof per representative for inspection work; $126.24 per

hour or fraction thereof per representative for analyical or review work; $0.59 per mile for travel

by automobile; government rate or the equivalent for travel by air or other means; and the

published govertment per diem rate or thc equivalent for the areas in which the inspections are

perfonned per representative and per day for subsistence expenses, where necessary. In the

event that the standard rates applicable to FDA supervision of court-ordered compliance are

modified, tltese rates shall be increased or decreased without furthcr ordcr of thc Court.

20. Within three (3) days after becoming aware of any of the following information

about any drugs manufactured, held, and/or distributed at or from Defendants' facility, Defendants

shall subnrit to FDA at the address specified in paragraph 29, aprodtct quality repoft describing all

information pertaining to any:

a) Product and/or manufacturing defects that could result in serious adverse

drug experiences;

b) Mislabeling or mix-ups. including incident(s) that causes any drug or its

labeling to be rnistaken for, or applied to. another article; and/or

c) Contamination, including any bacteriological. fungal. or envirorunental

contamination, or any significant chemical, physical, or other change or deterioration, or lack of

stability or incorrect potency, in any drug.

25

Case 5:22-cv-00109-gwc   Document 3   Filed 06/10/22   Page 25 of 34



21. Within seven (7) days after entry of this Decree, Defendants shall post a copy of

this Decree on a bulletin board in the employee common areas at Def-endants' facility, and

publish the Decree on any internal or publicly-available website maintained and/or controlled by

Defendants. Defendants shall ensure that the Decree remains posted as described herein for as

long as the Decree remains in effect.

22. Within seven (7) days after entry of this Decree, Defendants shallprovide a copy

of this Decree, by personal serice, certified rnail (restricted delivery, retum receipt requested),

or electronic mail to all Associated Persons. Within thirty (30) days after entry of this Decree,

Defendants shall provide to FDA an affidavit of cornpliance, signed by a person with personal

knowledge of the facts, stating the fact and manner of compliance with the provisions of this

paragraph and identifying the names, addresses. and positions of all persons who have received a

copy of this Decree pursuant to this paragraph, and attaching a copy of the executed certified

mail retr:rn receipts or emails acknowledging receipt. Within ten (10) days after receiving a

request fi'orn FDA for any information or documentation that FDA deems necessary to evaluate

Defendants' compliance with this paragraph, Defendants shall provide such infonnation or

documentation to FDA.

23. Within ten ( l0) days after entry of this Decree, Defendants shall hold a general

meeting or series of smaller meetings, in person or by video-conferencing or combination

thereof, for all Associated Persons, at which they shall describe the tenns and obligations of this

Decree. Witliin fifteen (15) days after entry of this Decree, Defendants shall provide to FDA an

affidavit of compliance, signed by a person with personal knowledge of the facts, stating the fact

and manner of compliance with the provisions of this paragraph and a copy of the agenda, list of

attendees, and meeting minutes fi'om the meeting(s) held pursuant to this paragraph.
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24. In tlie event that Defendants becomes associated with any additional Associated

Person(s) at any time atter entry of this Decree. Defendants immediately shall provide a copy of

this Decree, by personal seruice, certified mail (restricted delivery, return receipt requested), or

electrouic mail to such Associated Person(s). Within thirty (30) days after each time Defendants

become associated with any such additional Associated Person(s), Defendants shall provide to

FDA an affidavit stating the fact and manner of their compliance with this paragraph, identifying

the names, addresses, and positions of all Associated Persons who received a copy of this Decree

pursuant to this paragraph, and attaching a copy of the executed cerlified mail retr-rrn receipts or

cmails acknowledging receipt. Within ten ( 10) days after receiving a request from FDA for any

information or documentation that FDA deems necessary to evaluate Defendants' compliance

with this paragraph, Defendants shall provide such infonnation or documentation to FDA.

25. Defendants shall notify FDA at least fifteen ( 15) days before any change in

ownership, charactcr. or narl1e of any of Dcfendants' businesses, including incorporation,

reorganization, relocation, bankruptcy, dissolution, assignment, or sale resulting in the

emergence of a successor corporation, the creation or dissolution of subsidiaries, the creation of

any additional cntities that engage in manufacturing, holding, and/or distributing drugs, or any

other change in the corporate structure, responsibility of any individual defendant, or identity of

Edge Pharma, including a change in Edge Pharma's registration status pursuantto 21 U.S.C.

$ 353b, or in the sale or assignment of any business assets, such as buildings, equipment, or

inventory, that rnay affect obligations arising out of this Decree . Defendants shall provide a copy

of this Decree to any potential successor or assign at least fifteen ( l5) days before any sale or

assignment. Defendants sliall furnish FDA with an affidavit of compliance with this paragraph

no later than ten (10) days prior to any such assignment or change in ownership.
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26. If any Defendant fails to comply with any provision of this Decree, the Act and/or

its implementing regulations, including any time frame irnposed by this Decree, then Defendants

Edge PharmaLLC and William Marc Chatoff shall pay to the United States of America: fifteen

thousand dollars ($15,000) in liquidated damages for each day such violation continttes; an

additional sum of fifteen thousand dollars ($1-5,000) in liquidated damages fbr each violation;

and further additional sum equal to the retail value of drug products that have been

manufactured, held, and/or distributed in violation of this Decree, the Act, and/or its

implementing regulations. The total amount of suctt liquidated damages shall not exceed fifteen

rnillion dollars ($ 15,000,000) annually. The remcdy in this paragraph shall be in addition to any

other remedies available to the United States undcr this Decree or the law.

21. Defendants shall abide by the decisions of FDA, and FDA's decisions shall be

final. All decisions conf'ened upon FDA in this Decree shall be vested in FDA's discretion and,

to the extent that thcse decisions are subject to review, shall be reviewed by this Court under the

arbitrary and capricious standard set fofih in 5 U.S.C. $ 706(2)(4). Review by the Court of any

FDA decision rcndered pursuant to this Decree shall be based exclusively on the written record

before FDA at the time of the decision. No discovery shall be taken by either pafty.

28. Should the United States of America bring, and prevail in, a contempt action to

enforce the tenns of this Decree, Defendants Edge Phanna LLC and William Marc Chatoff shall,

in addition to other remedies, pay all attorneys' fees and costs, travel expenses incurred by

attorneys and witnesses, expert witness fees, investigational and analytical expenses, court costs.

and any other costs or fees incurred by the United States in bringing such an action.

29. All notifications, certiflcations, repofis, correspondence, and other

communications to FDA required by the temrs of this Decree shall be prominently marked
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"Consent Decree Correspondence," and shall be submitted electronically to the Program

Division Director, Office of Pharmaceutical Quality Operations, Division I, at

ORAPHARMI RESPONSES@fda.hhs.eov. If electronic submission is not possible,

communications shall be addressed to the attention of the Program Division Director, FDA,

ORA/OPQO/Division 1, 10 Waterview Blvd. 3rd Floor Parsippany, NJ 07054.

30. If any deadline in this Decree falls on a weekend or federal holiday, the deadline is

continued to the next business day.

31. Defendants may petition FDA in writing to extend any deadline in this Decree, and

FDA may grant such extension without seeking leave of Court. Any such grant of extension shall

become effective upon Defendants' receipt of written notification from FDA.

32. Except as provided in the foregoing provisions of this Decree, the parties shall bear

their own costs and attorreys' fees in this action.

33. No sooner than sixty (60) months after resuming production of drug products

intended to be sterile, after receipt of written notification from FDA under paragraph l0(k) or

paragraph 1 1(k), Defendants may provide written notice to FDA that they seek relief from this

Decree. If, at the time of such notice, in FDA's judgment Defendants have maintained a state of

continuous compliance with the terms of this Decree, the Act, and all applicable laws and

regulations for at least sixty months after resuming production after receipt of written

notification from FDA under paragraph 10(k) or paragraph I 1(k), Defendants may petition the

Courl to grant such relief and the United States will not oppose Defendants' petition.
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34. This Court retains jurisdiction of this action and the parties thereto for the purpose

of enforcing and modifying this Decree and for the purpose of granting such additional relief as

may be necessary or appropriate.

IT IS SO ORDERED, this 10th day of Iune 2022.

UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE
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The undersigned hereby consent to the entry of the faregoing Decree.

Individually and on behalf of
EDCE PHARMA LLC

KUR.T RADKE"
Individually

Digitally signed by: Lazarus, David
Date: 2A22.05.19 12:55:10 *04'00'

DAVID G. LAZARUS
Verrill Dana LLP
6t7-29?-?&59
dlazarus@vcrril l-lau'. com
Attomey for Defendants Edge Pharma LLC
and Williarr Marc Chatoff

REETUPARNA DUTTA
Hodgson Russ LLP
7 t6-848-t626
rdutta@ihodgson russ. com
Attorney for Dcfendants Edgc Phanna LLC
and William Marc ClratotT

SUSAN WINKLER
Winkler Larv LLC
6t7-642-667 t
lvi nk I er. susan@ gmai 1. co m
Attomey for Defendant Kurt Radke

For Plaintiff

NIKOLAS KEREST
United States Attorney

ARI.TN C, RAO
Deputy Assistant Attorney Generat
Civil Division

GUSTAV W. EYLER
Director'
Consumer Protection Branch

JOHN W.M. CLAUD
Assistant Director

Consumer Protection Branch, Civil Division
Dcpartnient of Justice
P.O. Box 386
Washington, D.C. 20044
?02-305-0192
david. g. crockcu@usdoj. got'

OF COUITISEL:

DANIEL J. BARRY
.A.cting General Counsel
Deparhncnt of Health and Hrmran Serviccs

MARK RAZA
Chief Counsel
Foad and Dnrg Administt*tion

PERT.IAM GORJI
Deputy Chief Counsel lbr Litigation

CLAUD1A J, ZUCKERMAN
Senior Counsel
Oftice of the Chief Counsel
Food ancl Drug Adrninistration

WILLIAM MARC CHATOFF,

DAYID C. CR
Trial Attorney
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The undersigned

For Defendants

WILLIAM MARC CHATOFF,
Individually and on behalf of
EDGE PHARMA LLC

KURT RADK-E,
Individually

Digitally signed by: Lazarus, David

Date: 2022.05.19 12:55:10 -04'00'

DAVID G. LAZARUS
Verrill Dana LLP
6t7-292-2859
dlazarus@verri I I - I aw. c o m
Attorney for Defendants Edge Pharma LLC
and William Marc Chatoff

REETUPARNA DUTTA
Hodgson Russ LLP
7t6-848-1626
rdutta@hodgsonruss. com
Attorney for Defendants Edge Pharma LLC
and William Marc Chatoff

SUSAN WINKLER
Winkler Law LLC
617-642-6671
winkler. susan@ gmail. com
Attorney for Defendant Kurt Radke

hereby consent to the entry of the foregoing Decree.

For Plaintiff

NIKOLAS KEREST
United States Attorney

ARLIN G. RAO
Deputy Assistant Attorney General

Civil Division

GUSTAV W. EYLER
Director
Consumer Protection Branch

JOHN W.M. CLAUD
Assistant Director

By:
DAVID G. CROCKETT JR.

Trial Attorney
Consumer Protection Branch, Civil Division
Departrnent of Justice
P.O. Box 386
Washington, D.C. 20044
202-305-0t92
david. g. crockett@usdoj . gov

OF COI.INSEL:

DANIEL J. BARRY
Acting General Counsel
Department of Health and Human Services

MARK RAZA
Chief Counsel
Food and Drug Administration

PERHAM GORJI
Deputy Chief Counsel for Litigation

CLAUDIA J. ZUCKERMAN
Senior Counsel
Office of the Chief Counsel
Food and Drug Administration
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T'he undersigned hereby consent to the entry of the foregoing Decree.

For Defendants

WILLIAM MARC CHATOFF,
Individually and on behalf of
EDGE PI.IARMA LLC

DAVID C. LAZARUS
Vemill Dana LLP
617-?92-2859
d lazarus@verri ll-l aw.com
Attorney for Defendants Edge Pharma I-l-C
and William Marc Chatoff

REETUPARNA DUTTA
Hodgson Russ LLP
716-848-1626
rdutta@hodgsonruss.com
Attorncy for f)efendants Edge Pharma I-l,C
and William Marc Chatoff

Winkler l-aw LI-C
617-642-6671
winkler.susan@gmail.com
Altomey lor Defundant Kurt Radke

For Plaintiff

NIKOLAS KEREST
United States Attorney

ARUN G. RAO
Deputy Assistant Attomey General
CivilDivision

CUSTAV W, EYLER
Direotor
Consumer Protection Branch

,OHN W.M. CLAUD
Assistant Director

DAVID G. CROCKETT JR.
Trial Attomey
Consumer Protection Branch, Civil Division
Department of Justice
P.O. Box 386
Washington,D.C.20044
202-3a5-0192
david. g.crockett@usdoj. gov

OI? COUNSEL:

DANIEL J. BARRY
Acting General Counsel
Department of l{ealth and Fluman Services

MARK RAZA
Chie f Counsel
Food and Drug Administration

PERHAM GORJI
Deputy Chief Counsel for Litigation

CLAI.JDIA J. ZI.JCKERMAN
Senior Counsel
Office of the Chief Counsel
Food and Drug Administration

By:

3l

URT RADKE,
Individrially
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10903 New Hampshire Avenue
Bldg. 31, Rm 4550
Silver Spring, MD 20993-0002

32

Case 5:22-cv-00109-gwc   Document 3   Filed 06/10/22   Page 34 of 34


